
i

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX

Telephone: 023 9247 4174
Fax: 023 9248 0263
Website: www.havant.gov.uk

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Membership:      
Councillors Buckley, Hughes, Keast, Patrick, Perry, Satchwell and Lloyd

Meeting: Development Management Committee

Date: 9 November 2017

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: Hurstwood Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, 
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

31 October 2017

Contact Officer: Jack Caine 023 92446230
Email:  jack.caine@havant.gov.uk

Page

PART A - (Items Open for Public Attendance)

1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive and record apologies for absence. 

2 Minutes  

To approve the minutes of the Development Management Committee 
held on   

1 - 6

3 Site Viewing Working Party Minutes  To Follow

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


ii

To receive the minutes of the Site Viewing Working Party held on  

4 Declarations of Interest  

To receive and record declarations of interests from members present 
in respect of the various matters on the agenda for this meeting. 

5 Chairman's Report  

The Chairman to report the outcome of meetings attended or other 
information arising since the last meeting of the Committee. 

6 Matters to be Considered for Site Viewing and Deferment  

The Committee are invited to consider any matters they wish to 
recommend for site viewing or deferment. 

7 Deputations  

To receive requests to make a deputation to Committee. 

8 Applications for Development and Development Control Matters  7 - 10

Part 1 - Applications Viewed by the Site Viewing Working 
Party

8(1)  APP/17/00928 - 16 Langstone High Street, Havant, PO9 1RY  
Proposal: Proposed Garden Room extension with roof terrace 
above (retaining previous proposals as approved).

Associated documents:
https://tinyurl.com/yd4d5pul 

11 - 36

8(2)  APP/17/00929 - 16 Langstone High Street, Havant, PO9 1RY  
Proposal: Listed Building Consent for proposed Garden Room 
extension with roof terrace above (retaining previous proposals as 
approved).

Associated documents:
https://tinyurl.com/y79jm9uf

37 - 60

9 Appointment of Chairman  

To consider the Appointment of Chairman for the next meeting of 
the Development Management Committee.

 

61 - 62

https://tinyurl.com/yd4d5pul


iii

PART B (Confidential Items - Closed to the Public)



iv

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA IN LARGE PRINT, 
BRAILLE, AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 92 446 231

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk.  Would you please note that 
committee reports are subject to changes and you are recommended to 
regularly check the website and to contact Jack Caine (tel no: 023 92446230) 
on the afternoon prior to the meeting for details of any amendments issued.

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and 
observe the meetings. If you wish to address the Committee on a matter 
included in the agenda, you are required to make a request in writing (an 
email is acceptable) to the Democratic Services Team.  A request must be 
received by 5pm on Tuesday, 7 November 2017 . Requests received after 
this time and date will not be accepted

In all cases, the request must briefly specify the subject on which you wish to 
speak and whether you wish to support or speak against the matter to be 
discussed. Requests to make a deputation to the Committee may be sent:

By Email to: jack.caine@havant.gov.uk or DemocraticServicesTeam@havant.gov.uk

By Post to :

Democratic Services Officer
Havant Borough Council 
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hants P09 2AX

Delivered at:

Havant Borough Council
Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant, Hants P09 2AX

marked for the Attention of the “Democratic Services Team”

http://www.havant.gov.uk/
mailto:DemocraticServicesTeam@havant.gov.uk


v

PROTOCOL AT MEETINGS – RULES OF DEBATE
Rules of Debate

 Councillors must always address each other as “Councillor …” and must 
always address the meeting through the Chairman

 Councillors may only take part in the debate if they are present at the meeting: 
video conferencing is not permissible

 A member of the Committee may not ask a standing deputy to take their place 
in the Committee for part of the meeting

 The report or matter submitted for discussion by the Committee may be 
debated prior to a motion being proposed and seconded. Recommendations 
included in a report shall not be regarded as a motion or amendment unless a 
motion or amendment to accept these recommendations has been moved and 
seconded by members of the Committee

 Motions and amendments must relate to items on the agenda or accepted by 
the meeting as urgent business

 Motions and amendments must be moved and seconded before they may be 
debated

 There may only be one motion on the table at any one time;
 There may only be one amendment on the table at any one time; 
 Any amendment to the motion can be moved provided it is (in the opinion of the 

Chairman) relevant to the matter under discussion. The amendment can be a 
direct negative of the motion.

 The mover with the agreement of the seconder may withdraw or alter an 
amendment or motion at any time

 Once duly moved, an amendment shall be debated along with the original 
motion.

 If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended shall take the place of the 
original motion and shall become the substantive motion on which any further 
amendment may be moved.

 If an amendment is rejected different amendments may be proposed on the 
original motion or substantive motion.

 If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved to the original 
motion or substantive motion

 If an amendment is lost and there are no further amendments, a vote will be 
taken on the original motion or the substantive motion

 If no amendments are moved to the original motion or substantive motion, a 
vote will be taken on the motion or substantive motion

 If a motion or substantive motion is lost, other motions may be moved

Voting

 Voting may be by a show of hands or by a ballot at the discretion of the 
Chairman;

 Councillors may not vote unless they are present for the full duration of the 



vi

item;
 An amendment must be voted on before the motion
 Where there is an equality of votes, the Chairman may exercise a second 

(casting) vote;
 Two Councillors may request, before a vote is taken, that the names of those 

voting be recorded in the minutes
 A Councillor may request that his/her vote be recorded in the minutes



vii

Order of Business

Please note that the agenda order will be revised so that “uncontested” items 
are considered prior to 6 pm. The Contact Officer for this agenda can be 
contacted on (023) 9244 6232) on the afternoon prior to the meeting for 
details of the revised order, details of which are circulated at the meeting.

Who To Contact If You Wish To Know The Outcome Of A Decision

If you wish to know the outcome of a particular item please contact the 
Contact Officer (contact details are on page i of the agenda)

Disabled Access

The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO

No Smoking Policy

The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its 
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets. 

Parking

Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park 
opposite the Civic Offices as shown on the attached plan.



viii

 

BUS STOP KEY

Services Bus Stop

20, 21, 39, 63 1
20, 21,36**,39 2
23, 36** 3
23, 27**,37 4
23,27**,36**, 37 5

**  - also stops “hail and ride” opposite 
Stop 1 in Civic Centre Road



1
Development Management Committee

19 October 2017

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Development Management Committee held on 19 October 2017

Present 

Councillor   Keast (Chairman)

Councillors  Buckley, Hughes, Patrick, Perry, Satchwell and Lloyd

61 Apologies for Absence 

There were none.

62 Minutes 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the last meeting of the Development 
Management Committee held on 7th September 2017 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

63 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest relating to matters on the agenda.

64 Chairman's Report 

The Chairman advised that there were two upcoming Development 
Consultation forums:

 14th November; Land north of Sinah Lane, Hayling Island
 21st November; 40 Acres, Bedhampton.

Members were encouraged to make every effort to attend.

The Chairman also advised that, following consultation with members of the 
Development Management Committee, training events would be delivered 
in the near future.

65 Matters to be Considered for Site Viewing and Deferment 

There were none.

66 Deputations 

The following deputation requests were noted by the Committee:



2
Development Management Committee

19 October 2017

(1) Mr Gary Robinson – APP/17/00972 – Aura House, New Road, Havant, 
PO9 1DE

66a APP/17/00972 - Aura House, New Road, Havant, PO9 1DE 

The Committee considered the written report and recommendation from the 
Head of Planning Services to grant permission.

The Committee was addressed by the following deputee:

(1) Mr Gary Robinson, who supported the application for the following 
reasons:

a. Further development would increase the interest from Local 
Businesses to operate from the site

b. The existing development was of a high standard and the proposal 
was also of a high standard and quality design.

c. The proposal sought to mitigate concerns of parking by increasing 
the overall parking spaces and including bicycle storage to 
encourage commuters to use alternative methods of transport

d. The site was adjacent to bus routes and railway station, making it 
highly accessible, also mitigating concerns of increase in parking

e. This proposal, in addition to previous 2 proposals, had not received 
any objections from Councillors or members of the public.

f. The design of the proposal was sympathetic to the character of the 
areas and in keeping with the street scene.

g. Would provide much needed economic growth to the locality.

In response to questions raised by the committee, Mr Robinson advised that:

 In comparison to previous applications, the floor space was slightly 
greater

 The applicant was confident, due to the high level of interest shown by 
local businesses, that if the proposal was approved, the new offices  
would be occupied within a short period of time.

In response to questions raised by the Committee, officers provided the 
following information:

 The difference in scale from previous applications and the level of 
projection to the west that was outlined in the proposal.

The Committee discussed the application in detail together with the views 
raised by the deputee. The Committee agreed that the scale and bulk of the 
proposal was more in keeping with the character of the area and found that 
its prominence on the street scene was appropriate and acceptable in 
planning terms. Members also acknowledged that the proposal provided a 
contribution to the economic growth to the area. It was therefore



3
Development Management Committee

19 October 2017

RESOLVED that the Head of Planning be authorised to grant permission for 
application APP/17/00972 subject to the following conditions:

1 The development must be begun not later than three years beginning 
with the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:

Design and Access Statement received 11th September 2017
Noise Impact Assessment dated 3rd April 2017
Traffic Plan Drawing 03 A
Elevations Drawing 05 A
Location, Site, Floor Plans and Elevations Drawing 06 A

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of any Town and Country Planning 
General Permitted Development Order, the building hereby permitted 
shall not be converted for residential occupation.
Reason: In the interests of the living conditions of any future occupants 
and having due regard to policies CS16 and DM10 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2012.

4 Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application no above 
ground construction works shall take place until samples and a full 
specification of the materials to be used externally on the building have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and texture of the 
materials. Only the materials so approved shall be used, in accordance 
with any terms of such approval.
Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory 
and having due regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

5 The car and cycle parking, servicing and other vehicular access 
arrangements shown on the approved plans to serve the development 
hereby permitted shall be made fully available for use prior to the 
extension being first brought into use and shall be retained thereafter for 
their intended purpose.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and having due regard to 
policy DM14 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 
and the National Planning Policy Framework.

6 If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found 
to be present at the site, then no further development (unless otherwise 



4
Development Management Committee

19 October 2017

agreed in writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out 
until the developer has undertaken an appropriate assessment and 
submitted remediation method statement to the local planning authority 
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. 
Written approval for the remediation method statement shall be obtained 
from the local planning authority prior to implementation, and the 
remediation shall be implemented as approved.
Reasons: To ensure that no contamination sources exist or remain on 
the application site that may pose an unacceptable risk to future site 
users, offsite residential land uses, buildings, potable supplies or other 
services. This condition is in line with paragraphs 109 and 121 of NPPF, 
policies DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 
and DM17 of the Local Plan (Allocations) 2014.

7 No development shall take place until details of existing and finished 
floor and site levels relative to previously agreed off-site datum point(s) 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and having due 
regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

8 No development hereby permitted shall commence until a specification 
of the materials to be used for the surfacing of all open parts of the site 
proposed to be hardsurfaced has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby 
permitted shall not be brought into use until the implementation of all 
such hardsurfacing has been completed in full accordance with that 
specification.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and having due 
regard to policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

9 No development shall take place until plans and particulars specifying 
the following matters have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority:

(i) The provision to be made within the site for contractors' vehicle 
parking during site clearance and construction of the development;

(ii) The provision to be made within the site for a material storage 
compound during site clearance and construction of the development.

Thereafter, throughout such site clearance and implementation of the 
development, the approved parking provision and storage compound 
shall be kept available and used only as such.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and/or in the 
interests of traffic safety and having due regard to policies CS16 and 
DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the 



5
Development Management Committee

19 October 2017

National Planning Policy Framework.

10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987, (as amended) and any Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order, the premises shall 
only be used as a B1(a) Office Accommodation; and for no other 
purposes within Class B of the above Use Classes Order.
Reason: In the interests of amenity and highway safety and having due 
regard to Policies CS16  of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core 
Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

67 Appointment of Chairman 

RESOLVED that Cllr John Perry be appointed as Chairman for the next 
meeting of the Development Management Committee.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 5.30 pm

……………………………

Chairman





NON EXEMPT

             

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Development Management Committee

APPLICATIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER DEVELOPMENT 
CONTROL MATTERS
REPORT BY THE EXECUTIVE HEAD OF 
PLANNING AND BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Applications to be determined by the Council as the Local Planning Authority

Members are advised that all planning applications have been publicised in accordance 
with the Code of Practice for Publicity of Planning Applications approved at Minute 
207/25/6/92, and have been referred to the Development Management Committee in 
accordance with the Delegation Procedure for Determining Planning Applications 'Red 
Card System' approved at minutes 86(1)/4/97 and 19/12/97.

All views of consultees, amenity bodies and local residents will be summarised in the 
relevant report only if received prior to the report being prepared, otherwise only those 
views contrary to the recommendation of the Executive Head of Planning and Built 
Environment will be reported verbally at the meeting of the Development Management 
Committee.

Members are reminded that all letters received are placed upon the application 
file and are available for Development Management Committee Members to read 
on request. Where a member has concerns on such matters, they should speak 
directly to the officer dealing with the planning application or other development 
control matter, and if appropriate make the time available to inspect the file and 
the correspondence thereon prior to the meeting of the Development 
Management Committee.

The coded conditions and reasons for refusal included in the recommendations are set 
out in full in the Council's Manual of Model Conditions and Reasons for Refusal The 
standard conditions may be modified to meet the specific circumstances of each 
individual application.  Members are advised to bring their copies to the meeting of the 
Development Management Committee.

In reaching decisions on the applications for development and other development 
control matters regard should be paid to the approved development plan, all other 
material considerations, the views of consultees, the recommendations of the Executive 
Head of Planning and Built Environment, and where applicable the views of the Site 
Viewing Working Party.



The following abbreviations are frequently used in the officers' reports:

HPS Head of Planning Services
HCSPR Hampshire County Structure Plan - Review
HBLP Havant Borough Local Plan (comprising the adopted Core Strategy 2011 

and saved policies from the District Wide Local Plan 2005. A related 
emerging document is the Draft Allocations Plan 2012)

HWLP Hampshire, Portsmouth & Southampton Minerals & Waste Local Plan
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 2012
HBCCAR Havant Borough Council Conservation Area Review
AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
CA Conservation Area
LB Listed Building included in the list of Buildings of Architectural or Historic 

Interest
SAC Special Area of Conservation
SINC Site of Importance for Nature Conservation
SPA Site identified as a Special Protection Area for the protection of birds 

under the Ramsar Convention
SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest
FP Definitive Footpath
POS Public Open Space
TPO Tree Preservation Order
HBC Havant Borough Council
GPDO Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order
DMPO Town & Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure)(England) Order 2010 amended
UCO Town & Country Planning  (Use Classes) Order
S106 Section 106 Agreement
Ha. Hectare(s)
m. Metre(s)

RECOMMENDATIONS

To reach decisions on the applications for development and other matters having regard 
to the approved development plan, all other material considerations, the views of 
consultees, the recommendations of the Executive Head of Planning and Built 
Environment, and where applicable the views of the Site Viewing Working Party.

Implications 

Resources: 

None unless detailed in attached report.

Legal:

Details set in the individual reports



Strategy: 

The efficient determination of applications and making of other decisions under the 
Town & Country Planning Acts in an open manner, consistent with the Council’s 
planning policies,  Regional Guidance and Central Government Advice and Regulations 
seeks to ensure the appropriate use of land in the public interest by the protection and 
enhancement of the natural and historic environment; the promotion of the economy; 
the re-use of existing buildings and redevelopment of ‘brownfield’ sites; and the 
promotion of higher densities and good quality design in all new development all of 
which matters assist in promoting the aims of the Council’s Community Strategy.

Risks: 

Details set out in the individual reports

Communications: 

Details set out in the individual reports

Background Papers: 
Individual Applications with Case Officers

Andrew Biltcliffe
Head of Planning Services

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer





  
 ——————————————————————————————————————

Site Address: 16 Langstone High Street, Havant, PO9 1RY
Proposal:          Proposed Garden Room extension with roof terrace above 
(retaining previous proposals as approved).
Application No: APP/17/00928 Expiry Date: 18/10/2017
Applicant: Mr Oliver
Agent: M Farrer 

MF Designs Ltd
Case Officer: Daphney Haywood

Ward: St Faiths

Reason for Committee Consideration: At the request of Councillor Wilson 

HPS Recommendation: GRANT PERMISSION
——————————————————————————————————————

Executive Summary

No 16 Langstone High Street comprises a statutorily listed end of terrace two storey 
cottage of timber frame origin built circa 17th Century. It forms part of a group of 3 two 
storey cottages situated in a prominent position overlooking the Harbour, and within 
Langstone Conservation Area, Chichester Harbour AONB and Flood Risk Zone 3.

There is extant planning permission and Listed Building consent for extensions to the 
property. The current application seeks permission for these works and in addition a 
single storey garden room with roof terrace above. The proposed garden room and 
terrace would be of contemporary design, however, it still acknowledges and respects the 
form of the primary listed building, being subordinate in terms of scale and proposes 
materials which while in contrast are not considered to compromise the historic structure.

It is considered that the proposal would preserve the character, appearance and overall 
setting of the Listed Building, Conservation Area and AONB and would be compliant with 
Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
It is also considered that the scheme has a limited and acceptable impact on 
neighbouring properties. As such the proposal is considered to comply with Policies 
CS11, CS12 and CS16 - 1c and e, of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and approval is recommended subject to conditions as requested by the 
Conservation Officer. 

1 Site Description  

1.1 This grade II listed property forms part of a terrace row and sits in a prominent position 
overlooking the Harbour. It also lies within Langstone Conservation Area and within 
Chichester Harbour AONB and Flood Risk Zone 3. The property and those in the same 
terrace row have been enlarged in comparatively recent times, with a series of rear 
extensions added as part of a composite design.

1.2 No 16 Langstone High Street comprises an end of terrace two storey cottage of timber 
frame origin built circa 17th Century. It currently comprises lounge, dining and kitchen on 
the ground floor with 2/3 bed rooms on the first floor and a further room on the second 
floor. The external elevations are of facing brick work, painted render, and vertical tile 
hanging including patterned tiles and with plain clay roof tiles. To the east it is attached to 
No.17 a cottage of similar character, and to the west lies No15 a two storey dwelling built 
up to the boundary with the application site. There are no windows in the side elevation of 
the dwelling at No 15, other than those to a rear conservatory.



2 Planning History 

APP/17/00929 - Listed Building Consent for proposed Garden Room extension with 
roof terrace above (retaining previous proposals as approved). This parallel listed 
building  application is currently under consideration and can be found elsewhere on 
this agenda.
APP/15/00854 - Listed Building Consent for construction of first floor side extension 
and single storey side extension along with minor alterations, PERM,30/09/2015
APP/15/00853 - Proposed first floor side extension and single storey side extension 
along with minor alterations, PERM,30/09/2015
02/52690/009 - Demolition of single storey rear extension and erection of two storey 
and single storey rear extension.  (resubmission), PERM,09/12/2002
02/52690/008 - Listed building application for demolition of single storey rear extension 
and erection of two storey and single storey rear extension. (resubmission), 
PERM,09/12/2002
02/52690/007 - Notification of intention to fell a Cherry tree at Quay Cottage, 16 
Langstone High Street within Langstone Conservation Area., RNO,22/07/2002
02/52690/006 - Listed Building Consent for partial demolition of existing single storey 
rear extension and erection of two storey rear extension., REF,02/07/2002
02/52690/005 - Part demolition of existing single storey rear extension and erection of 
two storey rear extension., REF,02/07/2002
02/52690/004 - Listed Building application to demolish existing rear extension and 
erect single storey extension to rear., PERM,13/05/2002
02/52690/003 - Demolish existing rear extension and erect single storey extension to 
rear adjoining number 17 Langstone High Street., PERM,13/05/2002

3 Proposal 

3.1 Proposed Garden Room extension with roof terrace above (retaining previous proposals 
as approved APP/15/00853 and APP/15/00854). These extant plans enlarged the 
accommodation on the ground floor and first floor levels, with the ground floor extended 
to the side and rear to partly infill the space to the side of the dwelling, and the first floor 
extension increases the size of the existing bathroom and en suite accommodation. The 
approved plans showed the work to be carried out in tile hanging and plain tiles to the 
roof to match the existing structure. 

3.2 The current proposal is a revision to the 2015 approval in that the ground floor extension 
would be further extended to the side to infill the side courtyard area to provide a garden 
room with roof terrace above. In accordance with the 2015 permission the works would 
be set back from the frontage and behind the existing boundary walling. The plans have 
been amended to change the first floor glass balustrading to black iron railings. 
Additionally the access to the roof terrace has been amended and planters added with 
black metal trellis work to provide screening to the rear. 

3.3 Whilst the 2015 extension would be of traditional design and materials to match the 
existing dwelling, the proposed garden room would be of contemporary design 
incorporating large timber glazed doors. The side wall would be built up to the boundary 
with the adjacent property at No 15, but would not be attached

4 Policy Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework



Havant Borough Council Borough Design Guide SPD December 2011     
   

Havant Borough Council Parking SPD July 2016

Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) March 2011
CS11 (Protecting and Enhancing the Special Environment and Heritage of 

Havant Borough)
CS12 (Chichester Harbour Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB))
CS15 (Flood and Coastal Erosion)
CS16 (High Quality Design)
 

Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) July 2014
DM20 (Historic Assets)
AL1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development)
AL2 (Urban Area Boundaries and Undeveloped Gaps between Settlements)
 

Listed Building Grade: Grade 2
Conservation Area: Langstone

Langstone Conservation Area Review - Character Appraisal and Management Plan 2011

5 Statutory and Non Statutory Consultations 

Conservation Officer
This proposal has been the subject of pre-app discussion (GEN/17/00630). This grade 
II listed property sits in a prominent position overlooking Langstone Harbour. It also lies 
within Langstone Conservation Area. The building forms part of a terrace row. The 
property and those in the same terrace row have been enlarged in comparatively 
recent times. A series of two storey rear extensions have been added as part of a 
composite design.

The application involves a further modest addition occupying what is dead space to the 
side of the property. Apart from impacting slightly on the return tile hanging to the 
principal building the historic fabric of the historically important host building is 
unaffected. The present door connections are to be retained and re-used. The key 
issue therefore is the impact of the changes on the building's special interest and on 
the wider character and appearance of the conservation area.

The current proposals largely reflect the advice offered. The proposed scheme is of a 
contemporary design, however, in my opinion; it still acknowledges and respects the 
form of the primary listed building. The extension is subordinate in terms of scale and 
appears to use materials which will add a contrast between the old and new – yet not 
clash with or compromise the historic structure. 

The manner in which the building is viewed means that it is mainly the upper floor that 
is seen. On reflection I feel the glass balustrade needs amending. Looking at the drawn 
up plans it does jar with the existing character of the property and the surrounding 
area. I would therefore recommend the scheme is amended to either remove the 
balustrading altogether or a more suitable material is used like traditional black iron 
railings. 
Officer comment: The balustrading has been amended to black iron railings. 

There is currently mixed fenestration. Some appropriate, other elements in the current 
modern addition quite crude. I am satisfied that well designed slim double glazed units  



could be accommodated, subject to detail, without compromising the architectural 
character/appearance of the building. It is preferable to deal with such details at this 
stage, but it was agreed it could be covered as a reserved matter.

In the event of planning permission/listed building consent being granted, advise the 
imposition of conditions.

Chichester Harbour Conservancy
The property occupies a very prominent position in the Conservation Area and is highly 
visible from the harbour shoreline and to a lesser extent from the bridge to Hayling 
Island. 

The scale of the extensions seems acceptable as is the palette of facing and roofing 
materials. That the garden room now comes right to the common boundary, would not 
so denude the spatial character of the street to warrant an objection from The 
Conservancy and I note a pre-application meeting took place with the Council’s 
Conservation Adviser.

I still only have one slight concern, which was first made 16.9.15 in response to 
application APP/15/00853. The comment seems even more relevant now that a roof 
terrace is proposed which would afford the occupier the same views of the harbour. I 
leave questions of neighbours’ privacy to the council to consider.

This relates to the size of the bathroom window opening at first floor, facing the street. 
This opening is much larger than other window openings facing the street. Being as it is 
to serve a bathroom and that the existing house projecting forward of that window 
would limit views of the harbour, the Conservancy still questions why the opening 
needs to be that big and being a bathroom why it needs to function as a Juliet balcony? 

This window is not annotated as being frosted and whilst the applicant may have no 
qualms ‘appearing’ before the unsuspecting public walking in the High Street or along 
the foreshore, modesty and societal ‘laws’ of propriety would suggest a planning 
condition to at least require obscure and fixed glazing to that window, ought to at least 
be considered by the council!

Notwithstanding similar having been approved under APP/15/00853 and that the 
Conservancy’s objection was misunderstood in the Officer report at that time, a smaller 
window, central to the width of the wall it sits in would seem more appropriate, perhaps 
centred on the ridge of the roof over it.

*Policy framework

NPPF - 14, 17, 56-58, 60, 64, 99, 109-113, 115 and Section 12; NPPG - ID8, ID18a, 
ID21a, ID26; Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 - CS12, CS16, DM8, 
DM9; Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) 2014 - AL1, DM20; Chichester Harbour 
AONB Management Plan 2014-2019: LS1, BD1, HE1, CD1; CHC Planning Principles 
(2016) – 01, 03; Chichester Harbour AONB Joint SPD; Borough Design Guide; 
Langstone Conservation Area Appraisal.

Drainage Engineer
FRA recognises drainage situation (FZ3). No other observations

6 Community Involvement 

This application was publicised in accordance with the Council's Code of Practice for 
Publicity of Planning Applications approved at minute 207/6/92 (as amended), as a result 
of which the following publicity was undertaken:



Number of neighbour notification letters sent: 5

Number of site notices: One

Statutory advertisement: 01/09/2017

Number of representations received: 41 including the Langstone Residents' Association.

         Summary:

6.1 Langstone High Street is part of all of our national heritage and known nationally, and 
loved by many as an integral part of an iconic landscape of great aesthetic, historic, and 
environmental significance. The proposal submitted for No 16 is intrusive, out of keeping 
with the area, and would have a significant negative effect on the street, the shoreline 
and the conservation area. The flint boundary wall is under one storey high and the 
proposed, flat-roofed ground floor extension would be visible from the public realm

6.2 The special and sensitive nature of the whole conservation area and the listed building 
status of the block of three Quay cottages (Nos. 16, 17 and 18) has not been fully  
recognised - the significance of the gap and then The Royal Oak public house that forms 
the core of the village along with the Mill and water mill. Introducing modern reflective 
materials, to this timeless scene is insensitive. A vernacular material would be better - the 
wooden balcony at the water mill could be used as a template. 

6.3 Proposed development is out of keeping with conservation area and Grade 2 listing of the 
property and severely undermines the character of the grouping of three cottages along 
the quayside, creating an unbroken terrace of properties from numbers 14 to 18 - a view 
regularly painted and photographed locally. Past and current owners of the three cottages 
have gone to a great deal of trouble, with the support and encouragement of the Council, 
to ensure that historic features have been sensitively restored. It is astonishing that such 
a visibly modern addition could be considered appropriate.  Previous alterations to 
numbers 16, 17 and 18 were permitted only on the basis that the frontage remained 
unchanged. 

6.4 Contrary to The "Langstone Conservation Area Review - Character Appraisal and 
Management Plan" approved in July 2011 and The Village Design Statement (VDS) 2008 
and Havant Borough Council's review of the Langstone Conservation Area approved in 
July 2011. The Village design statement follows a historic settlement pattern, a defined 
character, a consistent local building style and building materials and an agreed existing 
roofline, and I would hope this would be seen as a priority over the amenity of a single 
house to expand. 

6.5 The Conservation Area Management Plan recommends:
"Overall, any proposed changes to a building in the conservation area should be 
sympathetic to the original design, scale, materials and setting of the building and respect 
the historic grain of development established by the existing plot boundaries and existing 
historic buildings. As highlighted in Section 7.1.1, unsympathetic extensions can change 
the form and character of a building significantly, therefore the original architectural 
characteristics of buildings.".

6.6 The earlier VDS which was the subject of widespread consultation and gained approval 
from the whole Langstone Community states in its Guidance that development should 
"respond to the historic settlement pattern, character, landscape setting, local building 
styles and materials of the village and respect the existing roofline". A further 
recommendation urges respect for "scale, design, materials and colour which would have 
a positive impact on views towards the village from the surrounding area" Additionally it 



states that on the waterfront, particular care is needed to ensure that new development 
harmonises with the neighbouring listed buildings and the general panorama when 
viewed from land or sea. The current proposals do not reflect either the VDS Guidance or 
the Conservation Area Management Plan recommendations. These are two documents 
which relate specifically to Langstone rather than Havant Borough as a whole and should 
be the most significant in determining the outcome of this planning application

6.7 In respect to the 2 storey front extension which the council has already given approval to, 
not only is this in contravention of current planning guidelines but also the Village Design 
Statement. It incorporates a full height window and juliet balcony (from a bathroom!) 
overlooking the harbour, entirely out of keeping with the historic look of the cottage. Both 
this and the current application make reference to the cottage being a 4 bedroom 
dwelling and needing more living space for balance. This is factually incorrect - it is in fact 
2 bedrooms with a loft/possible 3rd bedroom in the attic space. 

6.8 There would be no method of controlling the use of the proposed first floor outside area. 
Furniture and any other items that the current or future occupants chose to store there 
would be visible through the railings.

6.9 The changes are not in keeping with the historic character of these listed buildings and 
are not in the style of this conservation area, as I believe that the date that the buildings 
(1700's) were built, roof terraces would not have existed and would not have had iron 
railings fitted.

6.10 The scheme is over development of a very small site attempting to turn the original listed 
house into a 4 bedroom dwelling and relocating its outside space to the roof of the 
extension. The proposal closes the gap between this house and the adjacent property 
obscuring the existing view of trees in the meadow behind the properties and in clear 
contravention of the concept of maintaining the streetscape of this iconic group of historic 
buildings in the High Street.

6.11 The existing planning proposal is based on the assessment of the property as a four bed 
dwelling. However bedroom four has been created from a loft conversion for which no 
planning approval or listed building consent has been given. The submitted plans are 
therefore inaccurate and invalid under planning legislation. Therefore the applicants 
should secure retrospective planning approval for the conversion from a three bed 
property to four bed property before any further large-scale extension is carried out over 
and above that carried out in 2002.  

6.12 The rear balcony overlooks and dominates the rear gardens of 15, 17 and 18, eliminating 
the resident's privacy and natural light for no.15. It would create a heightened sense of 
intimidating enclosure to 15,17 and 18. Once created, such a feature which would be very 
apparent from the front elevation to the road might be used for social gatherings and one 
fears the addition of beach umbrellas or even barbecues.

6.13 No guarantee that the planters will contain appropriate, full height planting to prevent 
obtrusive viewing impacting the privacy of 15,17 and 18 Langstone High Street

6.14 Infill of the side passage would mean that the only entry to the rear of the three properties 
would be via the garden of no 18 which has no road access. At high tide, this would mean 
no emergency service vehicles could be brought close enough to gain access to the rear 
of the properties which is clearly unsafe.

6.15 There would be an increased risk of flooding in the property's courtyard area to the south; 
this has frequently flooded, with water normally travelling up the side passage to the rear 
of the property. The proposed extension would limit this channel, thereby risking greater 
flooding in the courtyard and, at the same time, prohibiting emergency access to the rear 



of the property, while also risking damage to the adjacent property's east-facing wall. Also 
there would be restricted access in an emergency in order to assist all 3 cottages. Apart 
from the aesthetics, the question of the inevitable flooding does not appear to have been 
taken into proper consideration. At present floodwater can flow past the house into the 
back garden but if an extension fills up that space, the water is likely to flood number 16 
downstairs, as well as detrimentally affecting the neighbouring properties. Currently the 
property relies on side passage to relieve tidal flood height. The properties flood history 
should be discussed with the Langstone Flood Watch group /Village Association. Current 
property drainage is ineffective because of damaged underfloor drainage pipe to 
quayside wall.

6.16 Loss of gap between properties would impact structure and prevent application of a 
bituminous paint to the external surface of boundary wall to no. 15 which faces number 
16.  The resulting consequence being increased damp, damage to internal decor and 
ultimately fabric deterioration of the wall itself. 

6.17 The foundations of No 15 are not substantial and the digging of new foundations so close 
will have a negative impact both from a structural and drainage viewpoint The reduced 
gap between the two properties will delay the drying out / drainage process after any 
flooding. This may also accelerate any deterioration in the fabric of No15 and make any 
structural rectification of such very difficult. The existing foundations do not go deep, and 
would be made more vulnerable to water absorption. A minimum three metre gap 
between structures to allow for future maintenance and restoration based on a full 
structural survey should be required.

6.18 Set a precedent for other developments in the village

6.19 I think that this application should be refused but if it goes ahead, hopefully without the 
balustrade, then the patterned hung tiles, which will need to be removed from the side 
elevation, should be reused on the new extension in order to make a better match than at 
present.

Officer Comment: The majority of the points raised are considered in Section 7 below. 
With regard to access including that for maintenance, and property damage these are  
civil matters and not material planning considerations. In respect to the number of 
bedrooms, bedroom 2 is part of a circulation area providing access to other 
accommodation including the second floor. The status of the accommodation is not 
impacted by the current proposal. 

7 Planning Considerations 

7.1 Having regard to the Statutory provisions of the Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and relevant policies of the development plan, it is 
considered that the main issues arising from this application are:

(i) Principle of development
(ii) Impact upon the character and setting of the Listed Building, Conservation Area 

and Chichester Harbour AONB
(iii) Impact upon residential amenity
(iv) Adequacy of the site to accommodate the development
(v) Flooding

(i) Principle of development 

7.2 The application site is located within the defined urban area, therefore development is 
considered acceptable in principle subject to development management criteria. These 



criteria must take account of the Listed nature of the host building, as well as the dwelling 
within the Langstone Conservation Area and Chichester Harbour AONB.  

(ii) Impact upon the character and setting of the Listed Building, Conservation Area 
and Chichester Harbour AONB

7..3 Where development affects the setting of a listed building Section 66 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states: "In considering whether to grant 
planning permission, the Local Planning Authority shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting ....". Additionally the Havant Borough 
Local Plan Core Strategy  Policy CS11. 4 states that permission will be granted for 
development that “Protects and where appropriate enhances the borough’s statutory and 
non-statutory heritage designations by appropriately managing development in or 
adjacent to conservation areas, listed buildings, scheduled ancient monuments, historic 
parks and gardens, archaeological sites, buildings of local historic or architectural 
interest.” .The requirement to protect and enhance is further set out in the Langstone 
Conservation Area Review - Character Appraisal and Management Plan 2011and the 
Village Design Statement (VDS) 2008 guidance which states that development should 
respond to the historic settlement pattern, character, landscape setting, local building 
styles and materials of the village with scale, design, materials and colour to have a 
positive impact on views towards the village from the surrounding area".

7.4 All proposals for extension have implications for historic character and fabric. The 
implications of the internal changes are considered under the listed building 
APP/17/00929 elsewhere on the agenda. In respect to the external changes, the work the 
subject of the extant permission would be set back from the frontage and has been 
designed as a subservient addition to the existing dwelling, with a lower eaves height and 
fully hipped roof at first floor .The work, which would be constructed in materials to 
compliment the existing building, is considered not to result in detriment to the Listed 
Building and the Conservation Area.  In respect to the AONB, the proposed front 
elevation includes a large full length opening with juliet balcony. The Harbour 
Conservancy has objected to the extent of glazing as it is clear and serves a bathroom, 
however, the window would be set back from the frontage reducing its dominance, and 
given this siting it is considered that an adverse impact on public amenities would be 
difficult to substantiate.  

7.5 With regard to the garden room and terrace the proposed scheme is of a contemporary 
design, however, it still acknowledges and respects the form of the primary listed building, 
being subordinate in terms of scale and proposes materials which while in contrast are 
not considered to clash with or compromise the historic structure. 

7.6 In terms of the impact on the surrounding area, which falls within a Conservation Area 
and AONB, and the requirements of section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 which states that with regard to planning proposals 
affecting a Conservation Area "special attention shall be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character and appearance of the area",  the proposed 
ground and first floor elements previously approved under the 2015 application are 
modest in scale and of traditional character and considered to satisfy this requirement. 
The proposed garden room and terrace did not form part of that approval, but would be 
set back from the frontage, to the rear of the existing boundary wall which provides some, 
but not total screening, such that only the upper part of the ground floor and terrace 
railings would be visible above the wall. The manner in which the building is viewed 
means that it is mainly the upper floor that is seen. The glass balustrading has been 
amended to a form more traditional in character with black iron railings, which would be 
visually permeable and preserve the appearance of a gap between properties. As such 
the character and appearance of the area would on balance be preserved in accordance 
with section 72.  



 
7.7 The design and appearance of the proposal is deemed appropriate in context to the main 

building and is therefore considered to be acceptable, meeting the requirements of 
Policies CS11 and CS16 of the HBLP (Core Strategy).  It is considered that the scheme 
would not result in an adverse impact on the visual amenity of the locality.

(iii) Impact upon residential amenity

7.8 The main impact relates to the property to the west at No 15. Other than a rear 
conservatory which lies beyond the rear of the proposed extensions there are no 
windows in the side of this property. The proposed windows at first floor in the extension 
facing No.15, as approved under APP/15/00853, would serve a bathroom and en suite.  
In respect to the rear elevation the proposed first floor window serves an en suite. All 
windows are proposed to be clear glazed and as they either face the blank wall of the 
adjacent dwelling, the street or down the garden a condition in respect to obscure glazing 
could not be substantiated. 

7.9 The proposed garden room would not extend beyond the rear of the dwelling, and as 
such is not considered to result in loss of light or privacy to neighbouring properties. In 
respect to the roof terrace, such development has potential to result in loss of amenity. 
The roof terrace as originally proposed, would have enabled views toward the 
conservatory of No 15 and gardens of the adjacent dwellings, although in the case of No 
17 this would be at a fairly acute angle and in the case of No 15 this would be at an acute 
angle for the conservatory .The garden to No15 lies beyond the 10m deep garden to the 
application site. Consequently the loss of amenity would be limited. However, in order to 
lessen the impact the plans have been amended to incorporate screening to the balcony 
in the form of planters and this also reduces the useable area to the rear reducing the 
potential of this part of the terrace for people to gather. It is considered that the proposed 
amendments satisfactorily address the concerns regarding the impact of the roof terrace 
on the amenities of the neighbouring properties.  

7.10 In respect to concerns regarding damp and access for the neighbour to maintain No 15, 
this is a private matter and not a relevant planning consideration. 

(iv) Adequacy of the site to accommodate the development

7.11 The property occupies a relatively small plot, however, the proposed extensions, which 
will not increase the number of bedrooms, would infill an external store/ passage and the 
main rear amenity area would not be significantly reduced. It is considered that the works 
can be satisfactorily accommodated on the site. 

(v) Flooding

7.12 The property lies within Flood Zone 3, in an area at risk from tidal flooding from the 
Harbour. The property currently includes preventative measures with a raised threshold 
wall within the front garden and removable flood barrier to the front door. The proposal 
which does not add any bedrooms would not increase the risk to the occupants of the 
dwelling. 

7.13 In respect to measures to disperse flood water additional flood defence measures are 
proposed with the introduction of a pump within the Courtyard. This pump is to be located 
within a sump pit which will pump water through a non-return valve to discharge within the 
existing drain located in the quay wall. 

7.14 The Drainage Engineer has assessed the proposal and has no adverse comments. 



8 Conclusion 

8.1 It is considered that the proposal would preserve the character, appearance and overall 
setting of the Listed Building, Conservation Area and AONB and that the scheme has a 
limited and acceptable impact on neighbouring properties. As such the proposal is 
considered to comply with Policies CS11, CS12 and CS16 - 1c and e of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and approval is recommended subject to 
conditions as requested by the Conservation Officer. 

9 RECOMMENDATION:

That the Head of Planning be authorised to GRANT PERMISSION for application 
APP/17/00928 subject to the following conditions:

1 The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 
date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans:

Location  and block Job No 3125, drg No P02
Existing plans Job No 3125, drg NoEX01
Proposed plans Job No 3125, drg No P01M
South Elevation received 13 October 2017 

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

3 No development shall commence on site until details, including labelled 
samples (manufacturer, type and where it is to be used) of all external 
materials (including finishes), have been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. Only the approved materials shall be used in 
carrying out the development. 
Reason: To ensure the materials and finishes to be used are appropriate, in 
order to maintain the architectural interest of the listed building and the 
character and appearance of the conservation area and having due regard to 
policies CS11 and  CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

4 Notwithstanding the approved plans, the development hereby permitted shall 
not be commenced until detailed drawings of the new windows and doors have 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
details to comprise:-

a) Plans to clearly identify the window and door in question and its location 
within the property by cross referencing to an elevation drawing or floor plan 
for the avoidance of doubt.

b) 1:20 elevation and plan; 1:5 section and full size glazing bar detail.. The 
details to include the position of the window within the opening (depth of 
reveal) and method of fixing the glazing (putty or beading)
c) The materials used, method of opening and finishes.
 
The works shall be carried out in full accordance with such approval and be 



retained thereafter.
Reason: In order to safeguard the building's special architectural and historic 
interest and having due regard to policies CS11 and  CS16 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

Appendices

(A) OS Location Plan
(B) Block plan 
(C) South elevation and street elevation  
(D) Proposed Elevations and Sections 
(E) Proposed floorplans
(F) APP/15/00853 Approved elevations
(G)    APP/15/00853 Approved floor plans
     









BLOCK PLANAPPENDIX B





APPENDIX C PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION AND STREET ELEVATION





PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONSAPPENDIX D





APPENDIX E PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS





APPENDIX F APP/15/00853 APPROVED ELEVATIONS





APPENDIX G APP/15/00853 APPROVED FLOOR PLANS





  
 
     

——————————————————————————————————————
Site Address: 16 Langstone High Street, Havant, PO9 1RY
Proposal:          Listed Building Consent for proposed Garden Room extension 
with roof terrace above (retaining previous proposals as approved).
Application No: APP/17/00929 Expiry Date: 18/10/2017
Applicant: Mr Oliver
Agent: M Farrer 

MF Designs Ltd
Case Officer: Daphney Haywood

Ward: St Faiths

Reason for Committee Consideration:  At the request of Councillor Wilson 

HPS Recommendation: GRANT LISTED BUILDING CONSENT
——————————————————————————————————————

Executive Summary

No 16 Langstone High Street comprises a statutorily listed end of terrace two storey 
cottage of timber frame origin built circa 17th Century. It forms part of a group of 3 two 
storey cottages situated in a prominent position overlooking the Harbour, and within 
Langstone Conservation Area, Chichester Harbour AONB and Flood Risk Zone 3.

There is extant planning permission and Listed Building consent for extensions to the 
property. The current listed building application seeks permission for these works and in 
addition a single storey garden room with roof terrace above. The proposed garden room 
and terrace would be of contemporary design, however, it still acknowledges and 
respects the form of the primary listed building, being subordinate in terms of scale and 
proposes materials which while in contrast are not considered to compromise the historic 
structure. 

It is considered that the proposal would preserve the character, appearance and overall 
setting of the Listed Building and be compliant with Section 16 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. As such the proposal is considered to 
comply with Policies CS11, CS12 and CS16 - 1c and e, of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and approval is recommended subject to conditions as 
requested by the Conservation Officer. 

1 Site Description 

1.1 This grade II listed property forms part of a terrace row and sits in a prominent position 
overlooking the Harbour. It also lies within Langstone Conservation Area and within 
Chichester Harbour AONB and Flood Risk Zone 3. The property and those in the same 
terrace row have been enlarged in comparatively recent times, with a series of rear 
extensions added as part of a composite design.

1.2 No 16 Langstone High Street comprises an end of terrace two storey cottage of timber 
frame origin built circa 17th Century. It currently comprises lounge, dining and kitchen on 
the ground floor with 2/3 bed rooms on the first floor and a further room on the second 
floor. The external elevations are of facing brick work, painted render, and vertical tile 
hanging including patterned tiles and with plain clay roof tiles. To the east it is attached to 
No.17 a cottage of similar character, and to the west lies No15 a two storey dwelling built 
up to the boundary with the application site. There are no windows in the side elevation of 



the dwelling at No 15, other than those to a rear conservatory.

2 Planning History 

APP/17/00928 - Proposed Garden Room extension with roof terrace above (retaining 
previous proposals as approved)., This parallel planning application is currently under 
consideration and can be found elsewhere on this agenda.
APP/15/00853 - Proposed first floor side extension and single storey side extension 
along with minor alterations, PERM,30/09/2015
APP/15/00854 - Listed Building Consent for construction of first floor side extension 
and single storey side extension along with minor alterations, PERM,30/09/2015
02/52690/009 - Demolition of single storey rear extension and erection of two storey 
and single storey rear extension.  (resubmission), PERM,09/12/2002
02/52690/008 - Listed building application for demolition of single storey rear extension 
and erection of two storey and single storey rear extension. (resubmission), 
PERM,09/12/2002
02/52690/007 - Notification of intention to fell a Cherry tree at Quay Cottage, 16 
Langstone High Street within Langstone Conservation Area., RNO,22/07/2002
02/52690/006 - Listed Building Consent for partial demolition of existing single storey 
rear extension and erection of two storey rear extension., REF,02/07/2002
02/52690/005 - Part demolition of existing single storey rear extension and erection of 
two storey rear extension., REF,02/07/2002
02/52690/004 - Listed Building application to demolish existing rear extension and 
erect single storey extension to rear., PERM,13/05/2002

3 Proposal 

3.1 Listed building application for a proposed Garden Room extension with roof terrace 
above (retaining previous proposals as approved APP/15/00853 and APP/15/00854). 
These extant plans enlarged the accommodation on the ground floor and first floor levels, 
with the ground floor extended to the side and rear to partly infill the space to the side of 
the dwelling, and the first floor extension increases the size of the existing bathroom and 
en suite accommodation. The approved plans showed the work to be carried out in tile 
hanging and plain tiles to the roof to match the existing structure. 

3.2 The current proposal is a revision to the 2015 approval in that the ground floor extension 
would be further extended to the side to infill the side courtyard area to provide a garden 
room with roof terrace above. In accordance with the 2015 permission the works would 
be set back from the frontage and behind the existing boundary walling. The plans have 
been amended to change the first floor glass balustrading to black iron railings. 
Additionally the access to the roof terrace has been amended and planters added with 
black metal trellis work to provide screening to the rear. 

3.3 Whilst the 2015 extension would be of traditional design and materials to match the 
existing dwelling, the proposed garden room would be of contemporary design 
incorporating large timber glazed doors. The side wall would be built up to the boundary 
with the adjacent property at No 15, but would not be attached.

.

4 Policy Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework

Havant Borough Council Borough Design Guide SPD December 2011        



Havant Borough Council Parking SPD July 2016

Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) March 2011
CS11 (Protecting and Enhancing the Special Environment and Heritage of 

Havant Borough)
CS12 (Chichester Harbour Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB))
CS16 (High Quality Design)
 

Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) July 2014
DM20 (Historic Assets)
 

Listed Building Grade: Grade 2
Conservation Area: Langstone

Langstone Conservation Area Review - Character Appraisal and Management Plan 2011

5 Statutory and Non Statutory Consultations 

Conservation Officer
This proposal has been the subject of pre-app discussion (GEN/17/00630). This grade 
II listed property sits in a prominent position overlooking Langstone Harbour. It also lies 
within Langstone Conservation Area. The building forms part of a terrace row. The 
property and those in the same terrace row have been enlarged in comparatively 
recent times. A series of two storey rear extensions have been added as part of a 
composite design.

The application involves a further modest addition occupying what is dead space to the 
side of the property. Apart from impacting slightly on the return tile hanging to the 
principal building the historic fabric of the historically important host building is 
unaffected. The present door connections are to be retained and re-used. The key 
issue therefore is the impact of the changes on the building's special interest and on 
the wider character and appearance of the conservation area.

The current proposals largely reflect the advice offered. The proposed scheme is of a 
contemporary design, however, in my opinion; it still acknowledges and respects the 
form of the primary listed building. The extension is subordinate in terms of scale and 
appears to use materials which will add a contrast between the old and new – yet not 
clash with or compromise the historic structure. 

The manner in which the building is viewed means that it is mainly the upper floor that 
is seen. On reflection I feel the glass balustrade needs amending. Looking at the drawn 
up plans it does jar with the existing character of the property and the surrounding 
area. I would therefore recommend the scheme is amended to either remove the 
balustrading altogether or a more suitable material is used like traditional black iron 
railings. 
Officer comment: The balustrading has been amended to black iron railings. 

There is currently mixed fenestration. Some appropriate, other elements in the current 
modern addition quite crude. I am satisfied that well designed slim double glazed units 
could be accommodated, subject to detail, without compromising the architectural 
character/appearance of the building. It is preferable to deal with such details at this 
stage, but it was agreed it could be covered as a reserved matter.



In the event of planning permission/listed building consent being granted, advise the 
imposition of the following conditions:-

1. No development shall commence on site until details, including labelled samples 
(manufacturer, type and where it is to be used) of all external materials (including 
finishes)., have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.
Reason:
To ensure the materials and finishes to be used are appropriate, in order to maintain 
the architectural interest of the listed building and the character and appearance of the 
conservation area.

2. Notwithstanding the approved plans, the development hereby permitted shall not be 
commenced until detailed drawings of the new windows and doors have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details to 
comprise:-
a) Plans to clearly identify the window and door in question and its location within the 
property by cross referencing to an elevation drawing or floor plan for the avoidance of 
doubt.
b) 1:20 elevation and plan; 1:5 section and full size glazing bar detail.. The details to 
include the position of the window within the opening (depth of reveal) and method of 
fixing the glazing (putty or beading) 
c) The materials used, method of opening and finishes. 
The works shall be carried out in full accordance with such approval and be retained 
thereafter.

Reason: In order to safeguard the building's special architectural and historic interest.

Chichester Harbour Conservancy
The property occupies a very prominent position in the Conservation Area and is highly 
visible from the harbour shoreline and to a lesser extent from the bridge to Hayling 
Island. 

The scale of the extensions seems acceptable as is the palette of facing and roofing 
materials. That the garden room now comes right to the common boundary, would not 
so denude the spatial character of the street to warrant an objection from The 
Conservancy and I note a pre-application meeting took place with the Council’s 
Conservation Adviser.

I still only have one slight concern, which was first made 16.9.15 in response to 
application APP/15/00853. The comment seems even more relevant now that a roof 
terrace is proposed which would afford the occupier the same views of the harbour. I 
leave questions of neighbours privacy to the council to consider.

This relates to the size of the bathroom window opening at first floor, facing the street. 
This opening is much larger than other window openings facing the street. Being as it is 
to serve a bathroom and that the existing house projecting forward of that window 
would limit views of the harbour, the Conservancy still questions why the opening 
needs to be that big and being a bathroom why it needs to function as a Juliet balcony? 

This window is not annotated as being frosted and whilst the applicant may have no 
qualms ‘appearing before the unsuspecting public walking in the High Street or along 
the foreshore, modesty and societal ‘laws’ of propriety would suggest a planning 
condition to at least require obscure and fixed glazing to that window, ought to at least 
be considered by the council!



Notwithstanding similar having been approved under APP/15/00853 and that the 
Conservancy’s objection was misunderstood in the Officer report at that time, a smaller 
window, central to the width of the wall it sits in would seem more appropriate, perhaps 
centred on the ridge of the roof over it.

6 Community Involvement 

This application was publicised in accordance with the Council's Code of Practice for 
Publicity of Planning Applications approved at minute 207/6/92 (as amended), as a result 
of which the following publicity was undertaken:

Number of neighbour notification letters sent: 4

Number of site notices: One

Statutory advertisement: 01/09/2017

Number of representations received: 12 including the Langstone Residents' Association

Summary:

6.1 Langstone High Street is known nationally, and loved by many as an integral part of an 
iconic landscape of great aesthetic, historic, and environmental significance. The 
proposal submitted for No 16 is intrusive, out of keeping with the area, and would have a 
significant negative effect on the street, the shoreline and the conservation area. The flint 
boundary wall is under one storey high and the proposed, flat-roofed ground floor 
extension would be visible from the public realm

6.2 The special and sensitive nature of the whole conservation area and the listed building 
status of the block of three Quay cottages (Nos. 16, 17 and 18) has not been fully  
recognised - the significance of the gap and then The Royal Oak public house that forms 
the core of the village along with the Mill and water mill. Introducing modern reflective 
materials, to this timeless scene is insensitive. A vernacular material would be better - the 
wooden balcony at the water mill could be used as a template. 

6.3 Proposed development is out of keeping with conservation area and Grade 2 listing of the 
property and severely undermines the character of the grouping of three cottages along 
the quayside, creating an unbroken terrace of properties from numbers 14 to 18 - a view 
regularly painted and photographed locally. Past and current owners of the three cottages 
have gone to a great deal of trouble, with the support and encouragement of the Council, 
to ensure that historic features have been sensitively restored. It is astonishing that such 
a visibly modern addition could be considered appropriate.  Previous alterations to 
numbers 16, 17 and 18 were permitted only on the basis that the frontage remained 
unchanged. 

6.4 Contrary to The "Langstone Conservation Area Review - Character Appraisal and 
Management Plan" approved in July 2011 and The Village Design Statement (VDS) 2008 
and Havant Borough Council's review of the Langstone Conservation Area approved in 
July 2011 

6.5 The Conservation Area Management Plan recommends:
"Overall, any proposed changes to a building in the conservation area should be 
sympathetic to the original design, scale, materials and setting of the building and respect 
the historic grain of development established by the existing plot boundaries and existing 
historic buildings. As highlighted in Section 7.1.1, unsympathetic extensions can change 
the form and character of a building significantly, therefore the original architectural 



characteristics of buildings.".

6.6 The earlier VDS which was the subject of widespread consultation and gained approval 
from the whole Langstone Community states in its Guidance that development should 
"respond to the historic settlement pattern, character, landscape setting, local building 
styles and materials of the village and respect the existing roofline". A further 
recommendation urges respect for "scale, design, materials and colour which would have 
a positive impact on views towards the village from the surrounding area" Additionally it 
states that on the waterfront, particular care is needed to ensure that new development 
harmonises with the neighbouring listed buildings and the general panorama when 
viewed from land or sea. The current proposals do not reflect either the VDS Guidance or 
the Conservation Area Management Plan recommendations. These are two documents 
which relate specifically to Langstone rather than Havant Borough as a whole and should 
be the most significant in determining the outcome of this planning application

6.7 In respect to the 2 storey front extension which the council has already given approval to, 
not only is this in contravention of current planning guidelines but also the Village Design 
Statement. It incorporates a full height window and juliet balcony (from a bathroom!) 
overlooking the harbour, entirely out of keeping with the historic look of the cottage. Both 
this and the current application make reference to the cottage being a 4 bedroom 
dwelling and needing more living space for balance. This is factually incorrect - it is in fact 
2 bedrooms with a loft/possible 3rd bedroom in the attic space. 

6.8 There would be no method of controlling the use of the proposed first floor outside area. 
Furniture and any other items that the current or future occupants chose to store there 
would be visible through the railings.

6.9 The changes are not in keeping with the historic character of these listed buildings and 
are not in the style of this conservation area, as I believe that the date that the buildings 
(1700's) were built, roof terraces would not have existed and would not have had iron 
railings fitted.

6.10 The scheme is over development of a very small site attempting to turn the original listed 
house into a 4 bedroom dwelling and relocating its outside space to the roof of the 
extension. The proposal closes the gap between this house and the adjacent property 
obscuring the existing view of trees in the meadow behind the properties and in clear 
contravention of the concept of maintaining the streetscape of this iconic group of historic 
buildings in the High Street.

6.11 The existing planning proposal is based on the assessment of the property as a four bed 
dwelling. However bedroom four has been created from a loft conversion for which no 
planning approval or listed building consent has been given. The submitted plans are 
therefore inaccurate and invalid under planning legislation. Therefore the applicants 
should secure retrospective planning approval for the conversion from a three bed 
property to four bed property before any further large-scale extension is carried out over 
and above that carried out in 2002.

6.12 The rear balcony overlooks and dominates the rear gardens of 15, 17 and 18, eliminating 
the resident's privacy and natural light for no.15. It would create a heightened sense of 
intimidating enclosure to 15,17 and 18. Once created, such a feature which would be very 
apparent from the front elevation to the road and might be used for social gatherings and 
one fears the addition of beach umbrellas or even barbecues.

6.13 No guarantee that the planters will contain appropriate, full height planting to prevent 
obtrusive viewing impacting the privacy of 15,17 and 18 Langstone High Street

6.14 Infill of the side passage would mean that the only entry to the rear of the three properties 



would be via the garden of no 18 which has no road access. At high tide, this would mean 
no emergency service vehicles could be brought close enough to gain access to the rear 
of the properties which is clearly unsafe.

6.15 There would be an increased risk of flooding in the property's courtyard area to the south; 
this has frequently flooded, with water normally travelling up the side passage to the rear 
of the property. The proposed extension would limit this channel, thereby risking greater 
flooding in the courtyard and, at the same time, prohibiting emergency access to the rear 
of the property, while also risking damage to the adjacent property's east-facing wall. Also 
there would be restricted access in an emergency in order to assist all 3 cottages. Apart 
from the aesthetics, the question of the inevitable flooding does not appear to have been 
taken into proper consideration. At present floodwater can flow past the house into the 
back garden but if an extension fills up that space, the water is likely to flood number 16 
downstairs, as well as detrimentally affecting the neighbouring properties. Currently the 
property relies on side passage to relieve tidal flood height. The properties flood history 
should be discussed with the Langstone Flood Watch Group/Village Association. Current 
property drainage is ineffective because of damaged underfloor drainage pipe to 
quayside wall.

6.16 Loss of gap between properties would impact structure and prevent application of a 
bituminous paint to the external surface of boundary wall, which faces number 16. . The 
resulting consequence being increased damp, damage to internal decor and ultimately 
fabric deterioration of the wall itself. 

6.17 The foundations of No 15 are not substantial and the digging of new foundations so close 
will have a negative impact both from a structural and drainage viewpoint The reduced 
gap between the two properties will delay the drying out / drainage process after any 
flooding. This may also accelerate any deterioration in the fabric of No15 and make any 
structural rectification of such very difficult. The existing foundations do not go deep, and 
would be made more vulnerable to water absorption. A minimum three metre gap 
between structures to allow for future maintenance and restoration based on a full 
structural survey should be required.

6.18 Set a precedent for other developments in the village

6.19 I think that this application should be refused but if it goes ahead, hopefully without the 
balustrade, then the patterned hung tiles, which will need to be removed from the side 
elevation, should be reused on the new extension in order to make a better match than at 
present.

Officer Comment: The planning merits are considered under the parallel planning 
application, in respect to the impact on the listed building and its setting this is considered 
under section 7. 

7 Planning Considerations 

7.1 Having regard to the Statutory provisions of the Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the relevant policies of the development plan it is 
considered that the main issue arising from this application is:

(i) Impact upon the character and setting of the Listed Building

7.2 Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 
Planning Authorities to have special regard to the desirability of preserving listed 
buildings or their setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which 
they possess when considering applications for listed building consent. Additionally the 



Havant Borough Local Plan Core Strategy  Policy CS11. 4 states that permission will be 
granted for development that “Protects and where appropriate enhances the borough’s 
statutory and non-statutory heritage designations by appropriately managing 
development in or adjacent to conservation areas, listed buildings, scheduled ancient 
monuments, historic parks and gardens, archaeological sites, buildings of local historic or 
architectural interest.” 

7.3 All proposals for extension have implications for historic character and fabric, however, 
apart from impacting slightly on the return tile hanging to the principal building the historic 
fabric of the historically important host building is unaffected. The present door 
connections are to be retained and re-used. The key issue therefore is the impact of the 
changes on the building's special interest and its setting. 

7.4 In respect to the external changes, the work the subject of the extant permission would 
be set back from the frontage, of traditional form  and it has been designed as a 
subservient addition to the existing dwelling, with a lower eaves height and fully hipped 
roof at first floor.

7.5 The proposed garden room and terrace did not form part of that approval, but would be 
set back from the frontage, to the rear of the existing boundary wall which provides some, 
but not total screening, such that only the upper part of the ground floor and terrace 
railings would be visible above the wall. The manner in which the building is viewed 
means that it is mainly the upper floor that is seen. The glass balustrading has been 
amended to a form more traditional in character with black iron railings, which would be 
visually permeable and preserve the appearance of a gap between properties. The 
proposed scheme acknowledges and respects the form of the primary listed building, 
being subordinate in terms of scale and proposes materials which will add a contrast 
between the old and new – yet not clash with or compromise the historic structure.  As 
such the setting of the listed building on the site, and adjacent listed buildings would on 
balance be preserved in accordance with Section 16.  

7.6 The Conservation Officer has visited the site and assessed the proposal and is satisfied 
that the proposed works would preserve its historic character and integrity. 

8 Conclusion 

8.1 Having regard to the above considerations it is considered that the proposal would 
preserve the character, appearance and overall setting of the Listed Building.  As such 
the proposal is considered to be acceptable and approval is recommended subject to 
conditions as requested by the Conservation Officer.

9 RECOMMENDATION:

That the Head of Planning be authorised to GRANT LISTED BUILDING 
CONSENT for application APP/17/00929 subject to the following conditions:

1 The works must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this consent.
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 18 of the Planning 
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans:



Location  and block Job No 3125, drg No P02
Existing plans Job No 3125, drg NoEX01
Proposed plans Job No 3125, drg No P01M
South Elevation received 13 October 2017 

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development.

3 No development shall commence on site until details, including labelled 
samples (manufacturer, type and where it is to be used) of all external 
materials (including finishes). have been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. Only the approved materials shall be used in 
carrying out the development. 

Reason: To ensure the materials and finishes to be used are appropriate, in 
order to maintain the architectural interest of the listed building and the 
character and appearance of the conservation area and having due regard to 
policies CS11 and  CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

4 Notwithstanding the approved plans, the development hereby permitted shall 
not be commenced until detailed drawings of the new windows and doors have 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
details to comprise:-

a) Plans to clearly identify the window and door in question and its location 
within the property by cross referencing to an elevation drawing or floor plan 
for the avoidance of doubt;

b) 1:20 elevation and plan; 1:5 section and full size glazing bar detail.. The 
details to include the position of the window within the opening (depth of 
reveal) and method of fixing the glazing (putty or beading);
 
c) The materials used, method of opening and finishes.
 
The works shall be carried out in full accordance with such approval and be 
retained thereafter.
Reason: In order to safeguard the building's special architectural and historic 
interest  and having due regard to policies CS11 and  CS16 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework.

Appendices

           See parallel planning application APP/17/00928 elsewhere on this agenda









BLOCK PLANAPPENDIX B





APPENDIX C PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION AND STREET ELEVATION





PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONSAPPENDIX D





APPENDIX E PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS





APPENDIX F APP/15/00853 APPROVED ELEVATIONS





APPENDIX G APP/15/00853 APPROVED FLOOR PLANS





Rota for the rotating Chairmanship for the Development Management 
Committee 2017/2018

 Cllr Paul Buckley

 Cllr Gary Hughes

 Cllr David Keast

 Cllr Dianna Patrick

 Cllr John Perry

 Cllr Clare Satchwell

 Cllr Diane Lloyd




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	8 Applications for Development and Development Control Matters
	8(1) APP/17/00928 - 16 Langstone High Street, Havant, PO9 1RY
	APPENDIX A - LOCATION PLAN
	APPENDIX B - BLOCK PLAN
	APPENDIX C - PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION AND STREET ELEVATION
	APPENDIX D - PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS
	APPENDIX E - PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS
	APPENDIX F - APP-15-00853 APPROVED ELEVATIONS
	APPENDIX G - APP-15-00853 APPROVED PLANS

	8(2) APP/17/00929 - 16 Langstone High Street, Havant, PO9 1RY
	APPENDIX A - LOCATION PLAN
	APPENDIX B - BLOCK PLAN
	APPENDIX C - PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION AND STREET ELEVATION
	APPENDIX D - PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS
	APPENDIX E - PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS
	APPENDIX F - APP-15-00853 APPROVED ELEVATIONS
	APPENDIX G - APP-15-00853 APPROVED PLANS

	9 Appointment of Chairman

